

AGENDA

Ordinary Council Meeting

To be held in Shire of Koorda Council Chambers
10 Haig Street, Koorda WA 6475
Monday 24 March 2025
Commencing 5.00pm

NOTICE OF MEETING

Dear Elected Members,

Notice is hereby given that the next Ordinary Meeting of Council of the Shire of Koorda will be held on Monday, 24 March 2025 in the Shire of Koorda Council Chambers, 10 Haig Street, Koorda.

The format of the day will be:

5.00pm Council Meeting

Zac Donovan
Chief Executive Officer
20 March 2025

DISCLAIMER

No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Koorda for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council or Committee meetings.

The Shire of Koorda disclaims any liability for any loss whatsoever and howsoever caused arising out of reliance by any person or legal entity on any such act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council or Committee meetings.

Any person or legal entity who acts or fails to act in reliance upon any statement, act or omission made in a Council or Committee meeting does so at that person's or legal entity's own risk.

In particular and without derogating in any way from the broad disclaimer above, in any discussion regarding any planning application or application for a license, and statement or intimation of approval made by a member or officer of the Shire of Koorda during the course of any meeting is not intended to be and is not to be taken as notice of approval from the Shire of Koorda.

The Shire of Koorda warns that anyone who has any application lodged with the Shire of Koorda must obtain and should only rely on <u>written confirmation</u> of the outcome of the application, and any conditions attaching to the decision made by the Shire of Koorda in respect of the application.

To be read aloud if any member of the public is present.

Signed

Zac Donovan

Chief Executive Officer

Table of Contents

1.	Declaration of Opening	
2.	Record of Attendance, Apologies and Leave of Absence	
3.	Public Question Time	
4.	Disclosure of Interest	
5.	Applications for Leave of Absence	
6.	Petitions and Presentations	
7.	Confirmation of Minutes from Previous Meetings	
7.1.	Ordinary Council Meeting held on 19 February 2025	
8.	Minutes of Committee Meetings to be Received	
8.1.	Minutes of Internal Committee Meetings to be Received	
	Minutes of External Committee Meetings to be Received	
9.	Recommendations from Committee Meetings for Council Consideration	
9.1.	Policy Manual Review and Update	
9.2.	Quarterly Reporting of Integrated Strategic Plan and Workforce Plan	12
	Review of Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal	14
9.4.	Shire of Koorda Risk Profile Report	17
9.5.	Shire of Koorda Compliance Audit Return 2024	20
10.	Announcements by the President without Discussion	21
11.	OFFICER'S REPORTS – CORPORATE & COMMUNITY	22
11.1	I. Monthly Financial Statements	22
11.2	2. List of Accounts Paid	24
11.3	3. 2024/2025 Budget Review	26
12.	OFFICER'S REPORTS – GOVERNANCE & COMPLIANCE	30
12.1	I. Councillor Vacancy Planning	30
12.2	2. Shire of Koorda Policy Review	33
12.3	3. Caravan Park Local Law Final Approval	36
13.	OFFICER'S REPORTS – WORKS & ASSETS	39
13.1	I. Plant Retention and Disposal	39
13.2	2. Disaster Ready Fund Proposed Application	42
14.	Urgent Business Approved by the Person Presiding or by Decision	46
15.	Elected Members' Motions	46
16.	Matters Behind Closed Doors	46
17.	Closure	46

Shire of Koorda Ordinary Council Meeting 5.00pm, Monday 24 March 2025



1. Declaration of Opening

The Presiding person welcomes those in attendance and declares the meeting open at X.XXpm.

2. Record of Attendance, Apologies and Leave of Absence

Councillors:

Cr JM Stratford President

Cr GW Greaves Deputy President

Cr GL Boyne

Cr KA Fuchsbichler

Staff:

Mr Z Donovan Chief Executive Officer

Miss L Foote Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Members of the Public:

Apologies: Cr NJ Chandler

Visitors:

Approved Leave of Absence:

- 3. Public Question Time
- 4. Disclosure of Interest
- 5. Applications for Leave of Absence
- 6. Petitions and Presentations

7. Confirmation of Minutes from Previous Meetings

7.1. Ordinary Council Meeting held on 19 February 2025

Click here to view the previous minutes

Voting Requirements ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That, in accordance with Sections 5.22(2) and 3.18 of the *Local Government Act 1995*, the Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held 19 February 2025, as presented, be confirmed as a true and correct record of proceedings.

8. Minutes of Committee Meetings to be Received

8.1. Minutes of Internal Committee Meetings to be Received

a. Governance Meeting Minutes for meeting held 24 February 2025 Governance Meeting Minutes

Voting Requirements ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That, in accordance with Sections 5.22(2) and 3.18 of the *Local Government Act 1995*, Council receives the Minutes of the below Internal Committee meetings, as tabled.

a. Governance Meeting, 24 February 2025

8.2. Minutes of External Committee Meetings to be Received

- a. SRRG Meeting Minutes for meeting held 18 February 2025 SRRG Meeting Minutes
- NewTravel Council Meeting Minutes for meeting held 27 February 2025
 NewTravel Meeting Minutes

Voting Requirements ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That, in accordance with Sections 5.22(2) and 3.18 of the *Local Government Act 1995*, Council receives the Minutes of the below External Committee meetings, as tabled.

- a. SRRG Meeting, 18 February 2025 and
- b. NewTravel Meeting, 27 February 2025.

9. Recommendations from Committee Meetings for Council Consideration

9.1. Policy Manual Review and Update

Governan	Shire of Koorda Drive in stay awhile			
Date	13 March 2025			
Location	Not Applicable			
Responsible Officer	Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Offi	cer		
Author	As above			
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995			
Disclosure of Interest	Nil			
Purpose of Report	⊠Executive Decision ⊠Legislative Requ	uirement □Information		
Attachments	A - Change Management			
	B - Use of Shire Equipment and Resources for Firefighting Purposes			
	F - Cash Handling			
	F - Financial Reserves and Provision for Accrued Leave			
	F - Purchasing Policy			
	G - Cyber Security & Data Breach Response			
	G - Privacy Policy			
	P - Fencing Contributions - Shire Owned	l Properties		
	W - Material Supply and Royalties			
	W - Street Lighting			
	W - Vandalism Reward			
	W - Wildflower Harvesting and Animal/ Fauna Removal			
	Policies to Rescind			

Background:

In accordance with Section 2.7(2) of the Local Government Act 1995, Council is to determine the Shire's policies. The development and management of Council policy is an ongoing process.

It is important that Council policies are kept up to date and are reviewed on a regular basis under the direction of the Chief Executive Officer. If any changes or amendments are required these are brought to Council for endorsement.

Staff, in consultation with the Governance Committee, are conducting a major review of the Shires Policy Manual and propose improvements for Council's consideration. This report presents the changes within the policy manual.

This report presents the policy review that has been undertaken by Staff, in consultation with the Governance Committee to update the following:

- Rebranding changes to reflect the new logo.
- Updating of policy sections and numbering to remove redundant numbering and policy sections
 (A = Administration, B = Bushfire, EM = Elected Members, F = Finance, G = Governance &
 Compliance, P = Property, Planning & Land, and W= Works & Assets).
- Separating the existing Policy Manual into two (2) separate sections. One section being Strategic Policies (Council related) and one new section, Operational Policies being those policies that

specifically fall under the functions of the CEO as defined in the Local Government Act 1995, Section 5.41 Function of the CEO.

- Amendments to be made to existing policies.
- Introduction of new policies.
- · Rescindment of outdated policies.

Comment:

The Governance Committee will be undertaking a review on the below policies prior to consideration at the next Council Meeting. Subject to the Committee's review, these policies will be presented to Council for final consideration.

Amendments and introduction of policies to the "Strategic" section of the policy manual

Policy Section & Title	Proposed Amendments/Comments
A - Change Management	• Introduction of new policy as part of 2022/2023 Audit Findings/Recommendations.
B - Harvest and Vehicle Movement Bans	 Former Policy No: B6 Harvesting Ban Officers & B7 Harvesting Ban Procedure Re-write and merge old policies (B6 & B7) in line with current practices.
B - Use of Shire Equipment and Resources for Firefighting Purposes	Introduction of new policy as part of LGIS recommend Bushfire Policy suite. In line with current practices.
F - Cash Handling	• Introduction of new policy as per FMR recommendation: to ensure access to any cash held is restricted only to authorised personnel through secure storage. Implement appropriate documented procedures and controls for cash maintained by staff and / or third parties (such as contractors). Processes should also include reference to insured amounts relating to cash, to ensure adequate insurance levels are maintained relating to cash.
F - Financial Reserves and Provision for Accrued Leave	 Former Policy No: F5 Establishment of Reserve Accounts and F12 Provision for Accrued Leave Re-write and merge old policies (F5 & F12)
F - Purchasing Policy	 Inclusion of treatment for assets over \$75,000. Addition of new manager as purchasing officer. Inclusion of former policy "F4 Tenders - Canvass of Councillors."
G - Cyber Security & Data Breach Response	Introduction of new policy as part of 2022/2023 Audit Findings/Recommendations and as required as part of introduction of the Privacy and Responsible Information Sharing Bill 2024 (PRIS).
G - Privacy Policy	Introduction of new policy as required as part of introduction of the Privacy and Responsible Information Sharing Bill 2024 (PRIS).
P - Fencing Contributions - Shire Owned Properties	Introduction of new policy as requested by Council as per February 2025 OCM resolution.
W - Material Supply and Royalties	 Former Policy No: W5 Gravel Supplies & W6 Royalty Payments Re-write and merge old policies (W5 & W6)
W - Street Lighting	Update old Policy W12 Street Lighting
W - Vandalism Reward	Update old Policy P1 Vandalism Reward

<u> </u>	Former Policy No: P9 Wildflower Harvesting License - Council Posence 9 P14 Pontiles 9 Amphibians
Fauna Removal	Council Reserves & P11 Reptiles & Amphibians • Re-write and merge old policies (P9 & P11)

PART 2 - Policies to be Rescinded

It is recommended that the below policies be removed from the Policy Manual in their entirety. These policies are attached and labelled Part 2.

Policy	Reason for Rescindment	
A23 - Executive Function Test	As per advice provided by DLGSC ; • A local government can make local laws (legislative function) and provide services and facilities (executive function) • Executive function: The executive functions of local government include the administration of local laws and the provision of services and facilities. A local government can provide any service or facility that is necessary or convenient for the good governance of the people in its district or for the performance of any other function under the Act. Before commencing provision of a service or facility, a local government must satisfy itself that the service or facility integrates with State or Commonwealth services, does not inappropriately duplicate any State,	
	Commonwealth or private service, and is managed efficiently and effectively.	
H6 - Application for Planning Consent	The requirements to submit a development application are contained with the application form. Approval is included as per Shire of Koorda Delegation 12.1 Development Approvals/Planning Determination.	
O1 - Genetically Modified Crops	No longer relevant.	
P5 - Swimming Pool Opening Times	Swimming Pool Operation and Management tendered out and operations are determined during tender and contract negotiations which Council oversee.	
P10 - Playground Equipment	6-monthly compliance checks on playground implemented within Corporate Calendar and notification for inspections are implemented.	
W4 - Road Building Materials	NEWROC discussion regional collaboration on purchasing if/when appropriate.	
W9 - School Bus Stop Signs	No longer in delegation register. Operational matter. The Works Supervisor receives official requests from Education Department for any new locations requiring a school bus stop sign.	
W10 - School Precinct Parking	No longer relevant.	

Consultation:

Executive Management Team Governance Committee

Statutory Implications:

Local Government Act 1995, Part 2, Division 2 'Role of Council' 2.7. Role of council

- (1) The council -
 - (a) governs the local government's affairs; and
 - (b) is responsible for the performance of the local government's functions.
- (2) Without limiting subsection (1), the council is to -
 - (a) oversee the allocation of the local government's finances and resources; and
 - (b) determine the local government's policies.

Policy Implications:

The Policy Manual will be updated accordingly, should Council resolve to adopt the Committee's Recommendations.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

4.1 - Open and Transparent Leadership.

Risk Implications:

Not regularly updating the Shire's Policy manual poses a reputable risk with a medium risk rating. In order to maintain transparency and to facilitate appropriate decision-making processes, it is imperative that policy statements reflect the current position of Council and work practices at the Shire as well as best practice approaches.

Financial Implications:

Nil

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer/Committee Recommendation

The committee recommend that Council;

- 1. With regards to Shire of Koorda Policy Manual, adopts the following policies, as amended and included in this report, attached in Part 1;
 - (a) A Change Management
 - (b) B Use of Shire Equipment and Resources for Firefighting Purposes
 - (c) F Cash Handling
 - (d) F Financial Reserves
 - (e) F Purchasing Policy
 - (f) G Cyber Security & Data Breach Response
 - (g) G Privacy Policy
 - (h) P Fencing Contributions Shire Owned Properties
 - (i) W Material Supply and Royalties
 - (j) W Street Lighting
 - (k) W Vandalism Rewards
 - (I) W Wildflower Harvesting and Animal/Fauna Removal
- 2. With regards to Shire of Koorda Policy Manual, rescinds and removes the following policies, attached in Part 2:
 - (a) A23 Executive Function Tests
 - (b) H6 Application for Planning Consent
 - (c) O1 Genetically Modified Crops
 - (d) P5 Swimming Pool Opening Times
 - (e) P10 Playground Equipment
 - (f) W4 Road Building Materials
 - (g) W9 School Bus Stop Signs
 - (h) W10 School Precinct Parking

Policy "B - Harvest and Vehicle Movement Bans" was removed from the item to be referred to the Koorda Bushfire Advisory Committee Meeting.

9.2. Quarterly Reporting of Integrated Strategic Plan and Workforce Plan

Governar	Shire of KOOrda Drive in stry awhile		
Date	13 March 2025		
Location	Not Applicable		
Responsible Officer			
Author			
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995;		
	Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996		
Disclosure of Interest			
Purpose of Report	uirement ⊠Information		
Attachments Quarterly Scorecard – March 2025			

Background:

Section 5.56(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 requires all local governments to have a plan for the future of the district and under the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, all local governments in Western Australia are required to have adopted two key documents: a Strategic Community Plan (SCP) and a Corporate Business Plan (CBP). Together these documents drive the development of each local government's Annual Budget.

The Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework and Guidelines (2016) issued by the DLGSC that guides the SCP and CBP process require that regular monitoring and reporting of these plans are undertaken. This quarterly update forms part of this key reporting process.

Council adopted the Integrated Strategic Plan 2022-2032 (which incorporates both the SCP & CBP) at its meeting held 20 April 2022. In 2024 a desktop review of the plan was undertaken, and the updated plan was adopted at the June 2024 OCM as per resolution 120624.

Comment:

To assist Council to meet its IPR requirements under the Local Government Act 1995, the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, Shire staff have prepared the quarterly report, as attached to this item, for the Committee to consider and, if appropriate, recommend to Council that the quarterly scorecard be adopted and the Integrated Strategic Plan and Workforce Plan components be endorsed for publication.

Consultation:

Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Jannah Stratford, President, Shire of Koorda

Statutory Implications:

Local Government Act 1995 and relevant subsidiary legislation.

Policy Implications:

Nil

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

- 4.1 Open and transparent leadership.
- 4.1.1 Ensure efficient use of resources and the governance and operational compliance and reporting meets legislative and regulatory requirements.
- 4.3 Forward planning and delivery of services and facilities that achieve strategic priorities.
- 4.3.2 Report to Council progress of Council Actions using a quarterly score card and report results to community.

Risk Implications:

The Risk Theme Profile identified as part of this report is Failure to Fulfil Compliance Requirements. The consequence could be Compliance if the requirements of both the Local Government Act 1995 and the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 are not met in terms of the Shire having a plan for the future of the district. Another consequence could be Reputational if the public perceives that the Shire does not have the business planning tools in place to manage ratepayer money in transparent and accountable manner. The measure of Consequence is Minor, and the likelihood is Unlikely, giving an overall risk rating of Low. Both risks will be mitigated through adherence to the Integrated Planning and Reporting framework.

Fi	ina	an	cia	al	lm	pl	ica	ıti	on	IS	
										_	-

Nil

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer/Committee Recommendation

That the Audit Committee recommends:

That Council:

- 1. Adopts the quarterly reporting documents to March 2025 as attached to this item; and
- 2. Endorses the publication of the Integrated Strategic Plan and Workforce Plan components for community information.

9.3. Review of Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls

Governa	Shire of Koorda Drive in stoy awhile		
Date	13 March 2025		
Location	Not Applicable		
Responsible Officer	Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer		
Author	Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer		
Legislation	Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 – Reg 16 and 17		
Disclosure of Interest	Nil		
Purpose of Report	uirement □Information		
Attachments FRM Action Plan – March 2025			

Background:

The Review of Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance.

At the May 2023 Audit Committee Meeting, the Review of Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls was presented for consideration with the below committee recommendation being resolved at the May 2023 Council Meeting.

Committee Recommendation RESOLUTION 050523

Moved CR GW Greaves

Seconded CR BG Cooper

That Council:

- 1. Receives Moore's Review of Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls report, dated April 2023 (Attachment A);
- 2. Directs the CEO to provide a report, on a quarterly basis, to the Audit Committee to enable the Committee to monitor the Shire's progress in addressing the recommendations, pursuant to Regulation 16 (d) of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996; and
- 3. Directs the CEO at the first quarterly review to provide proposed actions, including expected completion dates, to the recommendations identified in the report.

CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 6/0

Comment:

This report has been presented to the Audit & Risk committee as the committee has a role in supporting Council in fulfilling its governance and oversight responsibilities and provide the audit committee with the opportunity to raise any issues that the document has identified or ask any other questions, they may have in relation to our risk management and compliance activities.

An initial report was tabled at the June 2023 Audit Committee Meeting and the attached Action Plan is an update on actions that have been taken within the past quarter to align with the quarterly reporting on the Integrated Strategic Plan.

Consultation:

Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Administration Staff

Statutory Implications:

Regulation 16 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 prescribes the functions of an Audit Committee which includes;

"16 (c) to review a report given to it by the CEO under regulation 17(3) and is to -

- (i) Report to the council the results of that review; and
- (ii) Give a copy of the CEO's report to the council."

"16 (d) to monitor and advise the CEO when the CEO is carrying out functions in relation to a review under –

- (i) Regulations 17 (1); and
- (ii) The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 regulation 5(2)(c)."

Regulation 17 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 reads as follows;

- "(1) The CEO is to review the appropriateness and effectiveness of a local government's systems and procedures in relation to
 - a) risk management; and
 - b) internal control; and
 - c) legislative compliance.
- (2) The review may relate to any or all of the matters referred to in subregulation (1)(a), (b) and (c), but each of those matters is to be the subject of a review not less than once in every 3 financial years.
- (3) The CEO is to report to the audit committee the results of that review."

Regulation 5 (2) (c) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 states that - "the CEO is to undertake reviews of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the financial management systems and procedures of the local government regularly (and not less than once in every 3 financial years) and report to the local government the results of those reviews."

Policy Implications:

The review recommended some potential improvement opportunities to some of the Council's policy. These will be considered separately by the Policy Review Committee and Council at the completion of the review process. Comments made in the FM Review relating to specific Policies and Procedures will be taken on-board as part of the review process.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

- 4.1 Open and transparent leadership.
- 4.1.1 Ensure efficient use of resources and the governance and operational compliance and reporting meets legislative and regulatory requirements

Risk Implications:

The CEO would be contravening the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996* if this review was not undertaken at least once every 3 financial years. The CEO is to report to the Audit & Risk Committee the results of this review.

The Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls Review covers a robust area of risk assessment and compliance with auditing in compliance with the Local Government Act 1995 and associated Regulations. The objective of this review is to identify risks to the organisation where non-compliant activities may have taken place enabling processes and procedures to be developed or reviewed and amended, if required.

Nil.

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Committee Recommendation

That, in accordance with Regulations 16 and 17 of the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations* 1996, the Audit & Risk Committee recommends;

That Council as per the quarterly report document to March 2025 as attached to this item, notes and endorses the actions taken to the identified improvements highlighted in the Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls review.

9.4. Shire of Koorda Risk Profile Report

Governa	nce and Compliance	Shire of KOOrda Drive in stay awhile	
Date	13 March 2025		
Location	Not Applicable		
Responsible Officer	onsible Officer Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer		
Author Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer			
Legislation	Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 – Reg 16 and 17		
	Local Government Act 1995		
	AS/NZS ISO 31000:2018		
Disclosure of Interest Nil			
Purpose of Report			
Attachments	Shire of Koorda Risk Profile Action Plan - March 2025		

Background:

The Review of Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance.

In addition to the Review of Financial Management, Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls undertaken by Moore in February 2023, as per the above item, Staff undertook an additional review, facilitated by LGIS, to understand the Operational Risks within the organisation.

The Risk Profile workshop, undertaken in October 2023, worked through 15 risk themes to identify what is the risk of this occurring at the Shire, both with and without controls, and what controls are, or should be in place.

Under the Risk Management Framework, the Shire utilises risk profiles to capture its operational and strategic risks. The profiles assessed are:

- Asset Sustainability
- Business and Community Disruption
- Community Engagement
- Compliance Obligations
- Document Management
- Employment Practices
- Environment Management
- Errors, Omissions and Delays
- External Theft and Fraud
- IT, Communication Systems and Infrastructure
- Management of Facilities, Venues and Events
- Misconduct
- Project / Change Management
- Purchasing and Supply
- WHS

For each category, the profile contains the following:

- Objective.
- · Risk Event.
- Potential Causes.
- Key Controls / Control Type.
- Control Adequacy.
- Control owner.
- Risk Rating.
- Actions and Responsibility.

Comment:

This report has been presented to the Audit & Risk Committee as the committee has a role in supporting Council in fulfilling its governance and oversight responsibilities and provide the audit committee with the opportunity to raise any issues that the document has identified or ask any other questions, they may have in relation to our risk management and compliance activities.

The initial Risk Profile Report was tabled at the December 2023 Audit & Risk Committee Meeting. Similar to the FRM Action Plan, the Risk Profile will be tabled at the quarterly Audit & Risk Committee workshops as a tracking tool to determine progress made against the key themes and improvements towards any identified areas of improvement.

Consultation:

Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Darren West, Works Supervisor
Kristyn Harrap, Governance Officer
Chris Gilmour, Regional Risk Coordinator, LGIS
Ben Galvin, Divisional Manager - Risk Services, LGIS

Statutory Implications:

Local Government Act 1995

AS/NZS ISO 31000:2018

Regulation 16 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 prescribes the functions of an Audit Committee which includes;

"16 (c) to review a report given to it by the CEO under regulation 17(3) and is to -

- (i) Report to the council the results of that review; and
- (ii) Give a copy of the CEO's report to the council."

"16 (d) to monitor and advise the CEO when the CEO is carrying out functions in relation to a review under –

- (i) Regulations 17 (1); and
- (ii) The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 regulation 5(2)(c)."

Regulation 17 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 reads as follows;

- "(1) The CEO is to review the appropriateness and effectiveness of a local government's systems and procedures in relation to
 - a) risk management; and
 - b) internal control; and
 - c) legislative compliance.

- (2) The review may relate to any or all of the matters referred to in subregulation (1)(a), (b) and (c), but each of those matters is to be the subject of a review not less than once in every 3 financial years.
- (3) The CEO is to report to the audit committee the results of that review."

Policy Implications:

Shire of Koorda Risk Management Strategy 2023

Policy "G - Risk Management" states;

Risk Assessment and Acceptance Criteria

The Shire quantified its broad risk appetite through the development and endorsement of the Shire's Risk Assessment and Acceptance Criteria. The criteria are included within the Risk Management Framework and as a component of this policy.

All organisational risks are to be assessed according to the Shire's Risk Assessment and Acceptance Criteria to allow consistency and informed decision making. For operational requirements such as projects or to satisfy external stakeholder requirements, alternative risk assessment criteria may be utilised, however these cannot exceed the organisations appetite and are to be noted within the individual risk assessment.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

- 4.1 Open and transparent leadership.
- 4.1.1 Ensure efficient use of resources and the governance and operational compliance and reporting meets legislative and regulatory requirements.

Risk Implications:

The Shire of Koorda has adopted a 'Three Lines of Defence' model for the management of risk. This model ensures roles, responsibilities and accountabilities for decision making are structured to demonstrate effective governance and assurance. By operating within the approved risk appetite and framework, Council, management and the community will have assurance that risks are managed effectively to support the delivery of the strategic, corporate and operational plans.

The Risk Profile covers a robust area of risk assessment. The objective of this review is to identify potential and actual risks to the organisation, determine the chances of these risks occurring within the organisation and identify key controls that are and should be in place to help reduce or mitigate the perceived risks.

Financial Implications:

Resource requirements are in accordance with existing budgetary allocation.

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer/Committee Recommendation

That, in accordance with Regulations 16 and 17 of the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations* 1996, the Audit & Risk Committee recommends;

That Council, as per the quarterly report document to March 2025 as attached to this item, notes and endorses the actions taken to the identified improvements highlighted in the Risk Profile.

9.5. Shire of Koorda Compliance Audit Return 2024

Governa	Koorda Drive In, stay overlike		
Date	10 March 2025		
Location	Location Not Applicable		
Responsible Officer Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer			
Author As Above			
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995 Section 7.13 (i) Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 – Reg 13, 14 and 15		
Disclosure of Interest Nil			
Purpose of Report □ Executive Decision ☑ Legislative Requirement □ Information			
Attachments Compliance Audit Return 2024 SOKD			

Background:

Each local government is to carry out a Compliance Audit return for the period 1 January to 31 December of the previous year against certain requirements included within a Compliance Audit Return (CAR) provided by the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries (the Department).

The CAR, once completed, is to be presented to the Audit & Risk Committee and then a report is to be presented to Council for adoption of the return. A copy of the completed CAR is included as an attachment for this item.

The Audit & Risk Committee has been requested to review the CAR for 2024, if so resolved, present to Council for adoption so the CAR may be submitted prior to 31 March 2025.

Comment:

The 2024 CAR has been completed as required. Care was taken when completing the Compliance Audit Return to endeavour to ensure all items were adequately addressed in accordance with the 'Audit of Compliance' per Section 7.13(i) of the Local Government Act 1995.

The CAR is now presented to the Audit and Risk Committee and Council for adoption and should be received by the Department by 31 March 2025.

The CAR has endeavoured to cover various aspects of Statutory Compliance as required by the Local Government Act and various regulations, to include statutory requirements listed in the Local Government (Audit) Regulations in the return.

Consultation:

Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Statutory Implications:

Local Government Act 1995 Section 7.13 (i) Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 – Reg 13, 14 and 15

Policy Implications:

Policy "G - Legislative Compliance" states;

Regulation 14 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 requires local governments to carry out a compliance audit for the period 1 January to 31 December in each year. The Compliance Audit is structured by the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries (DLGSC) and relates to key provisions of the Local Government Act 1995.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

- 4.1 Open and transparent leadership.
- 4.1.1 Ensure efficient use of resources and the governance and operational compliance and reporting meets legislative and regulatory requirements.

Risk Implications:

The Audit & Risk Committee would be contravening the *Local Government Act 1995* and the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996* if this item was not considered.

The CAR covers a robust area of risk assessment and compliance with auditing in compliance with the *Local Government Act 1995* and associated Regulations. The objective of the CAR is to identify risks to the organisation where non-compliant activities may have taken place enabling processes and procedures to be developed or reviewed and amended, if required.

Financial Implications:

Nil

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer/Committee Recommendation

That, in accordance with Regulations 14 and 15 of the *Local Government (Audit) Regulations* 1996, the Audit & Risk Committee recommends that;

- 1. Council receives and adopts the 2024 Compliance Audit Return, as presented to the Audit & Risk Committee in March 2025.
- 2. The 2024 Compliance Audit Return is submitted to the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries prior to 31 March 2025.

10. Announcements by the President without Discussion

11. OFFICER'S REPORTS - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY

11.1. Monthly Financial Statements

Corpora	KShire of KOOrda Drive in stray owhile		
Date	10 March 2025		
Location	Not Applicable		
Responsible Officer	Responsible Officer Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer		
Author	Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer		
Legislation			
	Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996		
Disclosure of Interest Nil			
Purpose of Report □ Executive Decision ☑ Legislative Requirement □ Information			
Attachments February 2025 Financial Activity Statement			

Background:

This item presents the Statement of Financial Activity to Council for the period ending 28 February 2025.

Section 6.4 of the Local Government Act 1995 requires a local government to prepare financial reports.

Regulations 34 and 35 of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996* set out the form and content of the financial reports, which have been prepared and presented to Council.

Comment:

All financial reports are required to be presented to Council within two meetings following the end of the month that they relate to.

Consultation:

Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer Finance Officers

Statutory Implications:

Council is required to adopt monthly statements of financial activity to comply with Regulation 34 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996.

Policy Implications:

Finances have been managed in accordance with the Shire of Koorda policies.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

4.1.1 - Ensure efficient use of resources and that governance and operational compliance and reporting meets legislative and regulatory requirements.

Risk Implications:

Risk Profiling Theme	Failure to fulfil statutory regulations or compliance requirements	
Risk Category	Compliance	
Risk Description	No noticeable regulatory or statutory impact	
Consequence Rating	Insignificant (1)	
Likelihood Rating	Rare (1)	
Risk Matrix Rating	Low (1)	
Key Controls (in place)	Governance Calendar, Financial Management Framework and Legislation	
Action (Treatment)	Nil	
Risk Rating (after treatment)	Adequate	

Timely preparation of the monthly financial statements within statutory guidelines is vital to good financial management. Failure to submit compliant reports within statutory time limits will lead to non-compliance with the Local Government Act 1995 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996.

Financial Implications:

Nil

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That Council, by Simple Majority, pursuant to Regulation 34 of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996*, receives the statutory Financial Activity Statement report for the period ending 28 February 2025, as presented.

Corporate and Community		KShire of KOOrda Drive in, stoy awhile	
Date	12 March 2025		
Location	Not Applicable		
Responsible Officer	Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer		
Author	Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer		
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995;		
	Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996		
Disclosure of Interest	Nil		
Purpose of Report	□Executive Decision ⊠Legislative Requirement □Information		
Attachments	List of Accounts Paid		

Background:

This item presents the List of Accounts Paid, paid under delegated authority, for the period 11 February 2025 to 12 March 2025.

Comment:

From 1 September 2023, Regulations were amended that required Local Governments to disclose information about each transaction made on a credit card, debit card or other purchasing cards. Purchase cards may include the following: business/corporate credit cards, debit cards, store cards, fuel cards and/or taxi cards.

The List of Accounts Paid as presented has been reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer.

Consultation:

Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer Finance Team

Statutory Implications:

Regulation 12 and 13 of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996* requires that a separate list be prepared each month for adoption by Council showing creditors paid under delegate authority.

Policy Implications:

Finances have been managed in accordance with the Shire of Koorda policies. Payments have been made under delegated authority.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

4.1.1 - Ensure efficient use of resources and that governance and operational compliance and reporting meets legislative and regulatory requirements.

Risk Implications:

Risk Profiling Theme	Failure to fulfil statutory regulations or compliance requirements
Risk Category	Compliance
Risk Description	No noticeable regulatory or statutory impact
Consequence Rating	Insignificant (1)
Likelihood Rating	Rare (1)
Risk Matrix Rating	Low (1)
Key Controls (in place)	Governance Calendar
Action (Treatment)	Nil
Risk Rating (after treatment)	Adequate

Financial Implications:

Funds expended are in accordance with Council's adopted 2024/2025 Budget.

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That Council, by Simple Majority, pursuant to Section 6.8(1)(a) of the *Local Government Act* 1995 and Regulation 12 & 13 of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations* 1996;

Receives the report from the Chief Executive Officer on the exercise of delegated authority in relation to creditor payments from the Shire of Koorda Municipal Fund, as presented in the attachment, and as detailed below:

For the period 11 February 2025 to 12 March 2025.

Municipal Voucher V513 to V610
Credit Card Transactions (V589)
Fuel Purchase Card Transactions (V529 & V601)
Bunnings Purchase Card Transactions (V566 & V596)

Totalling \$ 523,410.24
Totalling \$ 1,310.35
Totalling \$ 2,577.71
Totalling \$ 661.62
Total \$ 528,015.99

Corporate and Community		Shire of KOOrda Drive in stry awhile	
Date	14 March 2025		
Location	Not Applicable		
Responsible Officer	Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer		
Author	As above		
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995;		
	Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996		
Disclosure of Interest	Nil		
Purpose of Report	⊠Executive Decision ⊠Legislative Requirement □Information		
Attachments	2024/2025 Budget Review		

Background:

This item is to consider the Shire of Koorda's financial position as at 28 February 2025 and performance for the period 1 July 2024 to 28 February 2025 in relation to the adopted annual budget and estimated revenue and expenditure for the remainder of the financial year.

The budget review has been prepared to include information required by the *Local Government Act* 1995, *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations* 1996 and Australian Accounting Standards. The report for the period 1 July 2024 to 28 February 2025 show in the attachment has been prepared incoporating year to date budget variations and forecasts to 30 June 2025 and is presented for Council's consideration.

Consideration of the status of various projects and programs was undertaken to ensure any anticipated variances were captured within the review of the document where possible.

The material variance levels which has been reported for the budget review, have utilised the same materiality levels as the monthly reporting to determine the extend of explanation.

Comment:

The budget review report includes at Note 4 a summary of predicted variances contained within the Statement of Financial Activity, including whether variances are considered to be permanent (where a difference is likely between the current budget and the expected outcome at 30 June) or due to timing (e.g. where a project is likely to be delayed).

Features of the budget review include:

Budget Program	Adopted Budget	Revised Budget	Variance	Variance Reason
Op, Grants, Subsidies &	\$581,618	\$538,323	-\$43,295	Federal Assistance Grants lower than anticipated at time of
Contribution				budget.
			= -\$43,295	
Interest Revenue	\$251,000	\$281,000	+\$30,000	Reserve Interest higher than
				anticipated at time of budget.
			= +\$30,000	
Materials &	\$1,452,725	\$1,506,197	+\$70,472	GreenHeart Project (Operations)
Contracts			+\$43,000	MCG Project Management
			-\$20,000	Telstra Switch Removed
			-\$40,000	Standpipe Card Removed

wionday 24 March 2025	1		- 1650 470	
			= +\$53,472	
Depreciation	\$2,380,310	\$2,469,810	+\$63,000	Increased Road Depreciation
			+\$26,500	Increased Plant Depreciation
			= +\$89,500	
Insurance	\$230,320	\$215,320	-\$15,000	Workers Compensation credit
				from 23/24 for variances to
				Actual Salaries/Wages
			= -\$15,000	
Capital Revenue	\$3,072,969	\$2,392,969	-\$580,000	Play Our Way - Rec Courts
(Non-Operating			-\$100,000	Lotterywest - Rec Playground
Grants)			= -\$680,000	
Capital Revenue	\$321,000	\$281,000	-\$5,000	P03 Gardener Ute
(Proceeds from			-\$30,000	P16 Vibe Roller
Disposal of Assets)			-\$5,000	P200 WS Ute
			= -\$40,000	
Capital Expenses	\$495,000	\$304,855	+\$59,855	Rec Centre Ablutions
(Buildings)			-\$250,000	Drive In Upgrades
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			= -\$190,145	. 0
Capital Expenses	\$1,093,000	\$943,000	-\$34,200	P16 Vibe Roller
(Plant & Equipment)			-\$41,300	P43 Loader
, , ,			-\$8,000	P55 Team Leader Ute
			-\$4,000	P100 CEO Vehicle
			+\$500	P200 WS Ute
			-\$2,000	P300 DCEO Vehicle
			-\$6,000	P60 MPO Ute
			-\$55,000	Seroja - Communication Tower
			= -\$150,000	
Transfers from	\$1,446,972	\$1,296,672	-\$150,300	P019 Grade Budget Increase
Reserves				P063 Roller Budget Increase
			= -\$150,300	_
Transfers to	\$245,000	\$275,000	+\$30,000	Additional interest earned on
Reserves		,		Reserves.
			= +\$30,000	
Opening Funding	\$2,076,847	\$2,134,045	+\$57,198	Audited annual financial
Surplus (Deficit)	. , -,-	' ' ' ' ' '	' ' '	statements
ouipius (Deliciti				Julian

In considering the above variances and projections within the attached budget review, the closing position has increased from \$0 to \$107,664 reflected in the Statement of Budget Review.

Following completion of the budget review and to properly consider the impact of estimated projections at 30 June 2025, some items have been identified as requiring budget amendment to properly account for these variances where appropriate. Required budget amendments have been included on Note 4 of the attached budget review document for information, and also presented as a separate recommendation to the budget review for Council consideration.

Consultation:

Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer Darren West, Works Supervisor

Statutory Implications:

Regulation 33A of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 requires:

- (1) Between 1 January and 31 March in each financial year a local government is to carry out a review of its annual budget for that year.
- (2A) The review of an annual budget for a financial year must —

- (a) consider the local government's financial performance in the period beginning on 1 July and ending no earlier than 31 December in that financial year; and
- (b) consider the local government's financial position as at the date of the review; and
- (c) review the outcomes for the end of that financial year that are forecast in the budge; and
- (d) include the following
 - (i) the annual budget adopted by the local government;
 - (ii) an update of each of the estimates included in the annual budget;
 - (iii) the actual amounts of expenditure, revenue and income as at the sate of the review;
 - (iv) adjacent to each item in the annual budget adopted by the local government that states an amount, the estimated end of year amount for the item.
- (2) The review of an annual budget for a financial year must be submitted to council on or before 31 March in that financial year.
- (3) A council is to consider a review submitted to it and is to determine* whether or not to adopt the review, any parts of the review or any recommendations made in the review.
 - *Absolute majority required.
- (4) Within 14 days after a council has made a determination, a copy of the review and determination is to be provided to the Department.

Section 6.8(1)(b) of the *Local Government Act 1995* provides that expenditure can be incurred when not included in the annual budget provided it is authorised in advance by resolution (absolute majority required).

Policy Implications:

There are no known policy implications arising from this report.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

4.1.1 - Ensure efficient use of resources and that governance and operational compliance and reporting meets legislative and regulatory requirements.

Risk Implications:

The Review must be; undertaken between 31 December and 29 February in each financial year, presented to Council on or before 31 March and, lodged with the DLGSC within 14 days of adoption, otherwise the Shire will be non-compliant with the requirements of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations* 1996.

Financial Implications:

Authorisation of expenditure through budget amendments recommended. Other specific financial implications are as outlined in the body of this report.

Votina	Requiremen	nts:	Simple	e Maioritv	⊠Ahso	lute Maiorit\
VOLITIG	i veduli elllel	ILO.		Civialonity	-	iulo maioril

Officer Recommendation

That Council adopt by absolute majority the 2024/2025 midyear budget review as attached.

Voting Requirements: □ Simple Majority ⊠ Absolute Majority

Transfer to Reserve

Officer Recommendation That Council adopt by absolute majority the following budget amendments to the 2024/2025 adopted annual budget: **Operating Revenue Grants, Subsidies & Contributions Decrease provision by** \$43,295 **Operating Revenue Interest Revenue** Increase provision by \$30,000 **Operating Expenditure Materials & Contracts** Increase provision by \$53,472 **Operating Expenditure** Increase provision by **Depreciation** \$89,500 **Operating Expenditure** Insurance Decrease provision by \$15,000 **Capital Revenue Capital Grants, Subsidies & Contributions** Decrease provision by \$680,000 **Capital Revenue Proceeds from Disposal of Assets** Decrease provision by \$40,000 Decrease provision by \$190,145 **Capital Expenditure Land & Buildings Capital Expenditure** Plant & Equipment Decrease provision by \$150,000 **Capital Expenditure Infrastructure Other** Decrease provision by \$671,272 **Surplus Carried Forward** Increase provision by \$57,198 **Transfer from Reserve** Decrease provision by \$150,300

Increase provision by

\$30,000

12. OFFICER'S REPORTS - GOVERNANCE & COMPLIANCE

12.1. Councillor Vacancy Planning

Governance and Compliance		Shire of Koorda Drive in, stoy awhile
Date	24 February, 2024	
Location	Council Chambers	
Responsible Officer	Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer	
Author	As above	
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995 section 4.16 (4) Local Government Act 1995 section 2.17A).	
Disclosure of Interest	Nil	
Purpose of Report	□Executive Decision ⊠Legislative Requirement □Information	
Attachments	Resignation Letter - Kylie Michelle Burrell	

Background:

On Friday 21 February, Cr Kylie Burrell resigned her position on Council via email to the CEO. Ms Burrell was elected unopposed to Council in the 2023 October Local Government elections. In addition to Ms Burrell's role on Council, she also held positions on four of the Shire's 10 Council committees, which will now also need to be filled. Ms Burrell's resignation follows the resignation from Council on 18 January 2025 of Ms Sandra Christie who had been elected in an extraordinary election in May 2024.

As the population of the Shire of Koorda is less than 5000 people, and the President is elected by Council, the minimum number of Councillors permitted for the Shire is 5 (Local Government Act 1995 section 2.17A). Consequently, as Council retains 5 elected members, it will continue to meet the legislative requirements to function with two fewer Councillors following the resignations.

However, as with the vacancy created by Ms Christie's resignation, Council will need to approve the CEO to request the Electoral Commissioner approve that Council can operate without replacing the vacancy created by Ms Burrell's resignation. Council approved this approach with Ms Christie's resignation at the OCM of 19 February with correspondence sent to the Electoral Commissioner on 20 February and is awaiting a response.

As 2025 is a Local Government election year, and the resignations came after October 2024, Council is able to request that the Electoral Commissioner align the elections for the vacancies with the 18 October general poll, rather that hold extraordinary elections. Should the resignations have occurred after the third Saturday in July this year, Council would not have been required to seek approval to operate with the vacancies, as per the Local Government Act 1995 section 4.16 (4).

The purpose of this item is to gain Council endorsement to make such a request of the Electoral Commissioner to fix the date of the extraordinary election with the date of the October Local Government elections and consequently allow the position to remain vacant until that date, and for Council to elect members to the four committees to which Ms Burrell was part.

Comment:

In her written resignation advice to the CEO via email on Friday 21 February, Ms Burrell said that her decision to resign had not "come lightly" but was "necessary for me to ensure a balanced, mentally and physically, healthy life for my family, my business and myself".

On written advice to the relevant CEO of resignation from Council, the resignation, under the Local Government Act 1995 section 2.31(4) is effective from the date of delivery unless otherwise specified. Cr Burrell nominated that her resignation be effective immediately.

As mentioned previously, as the resignation falls after the third Saturday in the October 2024 but before the third Saturday in July 2025, the Shire is obligated to conduct an extraordinary election for the vacancy, unless Council makes a request of the Electoral Commissioner to fix the date of the required extraordinary election with the date of the October Local Government elections.

Consequently, Council will be accepting that the Councillor position remain vacant until contestable at the October elections. As mentioned, The Shire of Koorda is permitted to function with a minimum of 5 Councillors and a maximum of 7 and as Council had a full complement of Councillors prior to the resignation, it will not have an impact on the legislative requirements to operate.

In addition, Ms Burrell was a member of four of the Councils 10 committees and as such her resignation has also created vacancies as detailed in the table below that Council will need to elect replacements.

COMMITTEE	PRESIDING MEMBER	DEPUTY	MEMBERS
Building, Recreation and Town Planning	Cr GL Boyne	Cr NJ Chandler	VACANT Cr GW Greaves (Deputy)
Koorda Awards Committee	Cr GL Boyne	Cr JM Stratford	VACANT Cr Gary Greaves (Deputy)
Behavioural Complaints	Cr NJ Chandler	Cr GW Greaves	VACANT Cr JM Stratford (Deputy)
Koorda Grants Committee	Cr GL Boyne	Cr JM Stratford	VACANT Cr GW Greaves (Deputy)

Given the short timeframe before the next Local Government elections (18 October 2025), and, if granted approval by the Electoral Commissioner, will comprise 5 elected members, it is proposed that Council promote the nominated deputies to the substantive member role.

Consultation:

Tony Brown, Executive Director Member Services, WALGA

Statutory Implications:

Local Government Act 1995 Section 4.16 (4) Local Government Act 1995 section 2.17A)

Policy Implications:

G - Legislative Compliance V1.0

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

4.1 - Open and Transparent Leadership

Risk Implications:

Risk Profiling Theme	Failure to meet legislative requirement.	
Risk Category	Compliance	
Risk Description	Staff do not act in an appropriate timeframe to meet requirements.	
Consequence Rating	Minor (2)	
Likelihood Rating	Rare (1)	
Risk Matrix Rating	Low (2)	
Key Controls (in place)	Implementation of requirements following Council decision.	
Action (Treatment)	Staff understanding of requirements.	
Risk Rating (after treatment)	Adequate	

Financial Implications:

Nil

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That Council:

- 1. Instruct the CEO to request of the Electoral Commissioner to fix the date of the extraordinary election for the Councillor vacancy created by the resignation, to coincide with the October Local Government elections.
- 2. Agree for the four committee vacancies created by the resignation, that:
- a) Cr GW Greaves is elected to the Member position on the Building, Recreation and Town Planning Committee, and the Koorda Awards Committee.
- b) Cr JM Stratford is elected to the Member position on the Behavioural Complaints Committee, and
- c) Cr KA Fuchsbichler is elected to the Member position on the Koorda Grants Committee.

12.2. Shire of Koorda Policy Review

Governance and Compliance		Shire of KOOrda Drive in, stay awhile
Date	13 March 2025	
Location	Not Applicable	
Responsible Officer	Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer	
Author	As above	
Legislation	Туре	
Disclosure of Interest	Nil	
Purpose of Report	⊠Executive Decision ⊠Legislative Requirement □Information	
Attachments	Nil	

Background:

The objectives of the Council's Policy Manual are:

- To provide Council with a formal written record of all policy decisions;
- To provide staff with precise guidelines in which to act in accordance with Council's wishes;
- To enable staff to act promptly in accordance with Council's requirements, but without continual reference to Council;
- To enable Councillors to adequately handle enquiries from electors without undue reference to staff or Council;
- To enable Council to maintain a continual review of Council Policy decisions and to ensure they
 are in keeping with community expectations, current trends and circumstances;
- To enable ratepayers to obtain immediate advice on matters of Council Policy.

In November 2022 a Committee was established to undertake a comprehensive review of more than 120 existing Council policies, encompassing over 250 pages. Works on the policy manual review did not commence until 2023, following the completion of the FMR & Reg 17 review in April 2023, which included external review and recommendations to the existing Council policies, with the comprehensive policy review remaining ongoing since this time.

Comment:

To date the Governance Committee and Management Team have completed the below;

- 27 existing policies have been rescinded (8 pending as per Governance Committee Recommendation item 9.1),
- 29 existing policies transferred to the Operational Policy Manual,
- 49 existing polices merged/updated (11 pending as per Governance Committee Recommendation item 9.1), and
- 14 new policies have been drafted and adopted.

The below 30 existing policies still require reviewing/updating;

ADMIN

- A2 Record Keeping,
- A16 Reimburse Conference/ Training/ Seminar Costs Other than Councillors or Staff
- A35 Permit Vehicle Approvals
- A43 Plant, Equipment and Vehicle Purchases
- A44 IT Equipment Including tablets, smart phones and computers

BUSHFIRE

- B3 Bushfire Courses
- B4 Bushfire Permits
- B10 Banning of Cooking and Campfires within the Shire of Koorda
- B11 Bush Fire Burning to Protect Dwellings
- B12 Bush Fire Fighting Equipment Financial Assistance
- B14 Control of Fires Forward Control Points
- B15 Bush Fire Radio and Call Out Networks

FINANCE

- F9 Community Recreation Facilities Funding
- F10 Funding of Playing Fields
- F13 Regional Price Preference Policy

HEALTH

- H1 Building Application Land without Legal access
- H2 Building Licence Fees Refunds
- H3 Temporary Accommodation Building Sites
- H4 Private Sheds on Residential Land
- H5 Erection of Second-hand Houses

PROPERTY

- P2 No Smoking
- P4 Tenancy of Council Housing

WORKS

- W1 Bitumen
- W2 Maintenance Grading regularity Annual program
- W3 Vehicle Crossovers
- W11 Tree Planting and Removal
- W13 Clearing of Gazetted Road Reserves
- W14 Vegetation Clearing at Passive Railway Crossings
- W15 Deep Drainage
- W16 Surface Water

It is anticipated that the draft Bushfire policies will be tabled at the March Bushfire Advisory Committee Meeting before the Governance Committee perform their review.

A desktop review of the updated policies has been undertaken and it is recommended the below policies are reviewed by the Governance Committee, prior to Council adoption.

Policy Section & Title	Proposed Amendments/Comments
A - Annual Council Christmas Function	Update to include new procedure following 2024 Council Christmas Function.
F - COVID-19 Financial Hardship Policy	Keep financial hardship policy and remove reference to COVID-19.
F - Grants - Community Grants Program	 Recommend review following 3 rounds of Community Grants Programs to ensure processes/information still relevant.
EM - Continuing Professional Development – Elected Members	• Remove 30 th June requirement to complete training and align with WALGA recommendation of "within one year from being appointed" to follow current practices.
G - Council Meeting Systems	• Following item 12.2 with revised Council Meeting structure.

Consultation:

Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer Governance Committee

Statutory Implications:

Section 2.7 (2) (b) of the Local Government Act 1995 states that one of the roles of a Council is to determine the Local Government's policies.

Policy Implications:

Shire of Koorda "G - Development, Review and Amendment of Policies" states;

- Policies should be developed, reviewed or amended to ensure community expectations, current trends and circumstances have been considered.
- At a minimum, Council will conduct a complete review of all policies at least every two years. It is suggested the review takes places in the March, following each October election year.

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

4.1 - Open and Transparent Leadership

Risk Implications:

Talon implications	
Risk Profiling Theme	Business & Community Disruption
Risk Category	Compliance
Risk Description	No noticeable regulatory or statutory impact
Consequence Rating	Insignificant (1)
Likelihood Rating	Possible (3)
Risk Matrix Rating	Low (3)
Key Controls (in place)	Council Policies
Action (Treatment)	Undertake a review of all council policies biennially (every two years).
Risk Rating (after treatment)	Adequate

Financial Implications:

Nil.

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That Council endorse and approves the review of the current Council Policy Manual.

12.3. Caravan Park Local Law Final Approval

Governa	nce and Compliance	KShire of KOOrda Drive in stay awhile
Date	13 March, 2025	
Location	Koorda Caravan Park	
Responsible Officer	Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer	
Author	As above	
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995	
	Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds A	act 1995
	Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds F	Regulations 1997
Disclosure of Interest	Nil	
Purpose of Report	⊠Executive Decision □Legislative Requirement □Information	
Attachments	Caravan Park Local Law (v7) for Council approval	

Background:

Following concerns from anti-social behaviour at the Shire of Koorda Caravan Park, the OCM of 19 February endorsed that staff continued to develop a Caravan Park Local Law and for it to be returned for consideration at the 19 March OCM and proceed with installation of CCTV at the facility.

The process for the Shire to introduce a new local law is prescribed in the Local Government Act 1995 Part 3, Division 2, Sections 3.12. Failure to follow the legislative procedure does not automatically invalidate the local law, provided there has been "substantial compliance". Irrespective, the process is detailed with the intent of the Shire meeting all requirements.

Briefly the process commences with the president member giving notice of the proposed local law, which needs to include the availability of the proposed local law to be inspected at a place to be defined and open to submissions to the Shire for a period of no less than 6 weeks.

Immediately following Council determination to proceed with the local law, a copy needs to be provided to the Local Government Minister and any other associated state minister, however in the case of the proposed Koorda local law the Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Act 1995 is also administered by the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries.

On the completion of the submissions period, the proposed local law is returned to Council to reconsider in light of the submissions received, and on making the local law (by absolute majority of Council) it is published in the Gazette, Council gives public notice, and a copy is provided to the Minister.

The purpose of this item is to inform Council of the required process and timeframes, receive additional feedback from Council on the draft as attached and update the required and budget allocation for the installation of the CCTV system that is proposed to be increased to ensure cyber safety.

Comment:

Working through the process as prescribed in the Act, the need for the presiding member – Shire of Koorda President Cr JM Stratford – to give local public notices is largely satiated by the inclusion of the Council intent and draft document being included in the OCM agenda and minutes.

To this point, the shire needs to provide a statement and effect of the proposed local law which for the purpose of the notice is as follows:

Proposed Koorda Caravan Park Local Law

The purpose of this local law is to provide for the regulation, control and management of the Koorda Caravan Park.

The effect of this local law is to establish the requirements for entry to, and use of, the Koorda Caravan Park.

In addition, and given the required submission period of 6 weeks, during which time the proposed local law need be available to inspect, it is proposed the Shire advertise such on social media and place a notice on the Shire website as additional "local public notice". To this end it is proposed that the Shire office (10 Haig Street) be nominated as the place at which the local law can be inspected and provided to any person requesting it as hard copy.

The proposed Shire of Koorda Caravan Park Local Law 2025 is provided as an attachment to the agenda for consideration by Council and access for the community. Along with minor legal and editing changes, the only significant amendment to the draft presented to Council at the OCM 19 February is the increase of minimum penalties from \$50 to \$100 with a maximum for each offence of \$400.

To meet the process as outlined in this item, the schedule as first presented at the OCM 19 February has been amended as follows to accommodate Council's revised meeting schedule:

TIMING	MILESTONE
19 February OCM	Draft presented to Council for feedback and amendment of required
19 March Council briefing	Council presented draft local law for final feedback
24 March OCM	Council pass resolution to proceed/or not with Caravan Park Local Law
25 March	Provide copy to Local Government Minister
25 March – 8 May	Public notice period and opportunity for submissions (6 weeks)
14 May OCM	Council to be updated on submissions and pass resolution to make local law.
15 May	Provide copy of local law to Minister and commence process to publish in the
	Gazette. Once published the shire is to give public notice, include the new local
	law on its website and nominate the commencement date.

Regarding the second part of the resolution of the OCM of 19 February for the installation of CCTV at the Koorda Caravan Park, the Shire is currently in the process of finalising a provider with works anticipated to be completed prior to the expiration of the public notice submission period.

However, if the Shire is to proceed with the CCTV at the caravan park the original approved expenditure of \$5606 (ex. GST) as quoted will need to be increased to \$8805 (ex. GST). The need to change supplier results from an oversight in ensuring that the equipment quoted would not expose the Shire to cyber issues resulting from possible access to the Shire network when enacting remote connectivity.

There are two quotes attached for Council reference with the selected provider falling within the \$9000 budget remaining in \$14,000 caravan park maintenance budget with three months remaining in the financial year. The preferred supplier was also the only provider who attended the Shire and inspected the location.

Consultation:

Mark Gregory, Principal, M Gregory Legal Tony Brown, Executive Director Member Services, WALGA Robert Taylor, Maintenance and Property Officer

Statutory Implications:

Local Government Act 1995 Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Act 1995 Ordinary Council Agenda Monday 24 March 2025 Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Regulations 1997

Policy Implications:

W-Recreational Vehicles and Overflow Camping Grounds V1.0

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan (2024)

- 1.1 Local people feel safe, engaged and enjoy a healthy and peaceful lifestyle
- 2.2 Tourism helps to diversify and grow our local economy
- 3.1 Shire facilities are renewed and maintained to meet community needs

Risk Implications:

Risk Profiling Theme	The local law is rejected by the Minister
Risk Category	Reputation
Risk Description	Local laws are not permitted to conflict with other legislation.
Consequence Rating	Moderate (3)
Likelihood Rating	Possible (3)
Risk Matrix Rating	Moderate (9)
Key Controls (in place)	Shire engaging professional legal advice
Action (Treatment)	Adhere to legal advice
Risk Rating (after treatment)	Adequate

Financial Implications:

Expenditure of up to \$9000 from the Caravan Park maintenance budget.

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That Council:

- a) Approve the Shire of Koorda Caravan Park Local Law and proceed to communicating its intent and calling for submissions with:
 - i) the Koorda Shire Office at 10 Haig Street Koorda to be the place where the proposed local law can be examined, and
 - ii) the submission period commences on 25 March 2025 and concludes 8 May 2025.
- b) Approve installation of CCTV at the Koorda Caravan Park to monitor entrances and amenities of a cost of up to \$9000.

13. OFFICER'S REPORTS - WORKS & ASSETS

13.1. Plant Retention and Disposal

Works and Assets		KShire of KOOrda Drive in stry awhile
Date	12 March 2025	
Location	Shire of Koorda Depot	
Responsible Officer	Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer	
Author	As above	
Legislation	Local Government Act 1995 division 3 se	ection 3.58
	Local Government (Functions and Gene	ral) Regulations 1996 sec. 12
Disclosure of Interest	Nil	
Purpose of Report	⊠Executive Decision □Legislative Req	uirement □Information
Attachments	Nil	

Background:

The Shire of Koorda retains \$3.2m in plant with a \$400,000 projected annual replacement schedule based on current depreciation provisions. The plant is in most part associated with road construction, works and town maintenance. As such, and given the nature of local industry, much of the plant disposed of by the Shire of Koorda would be expected to align with local demand.

The Shire's replacement schedule for the various items of plant reflects a continuous process of purchase and recovery of part costs via trade ins and auction results. The Local Government Act 1995 division 3 section 3.58 requires the disposal of Local Government property, via public tender, auction or private treaty subject to public advertising and submission requirements.

However, Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations reg.30(3)(a) prescribes that a disposition of property, other than land, that has a market value less than \$20,000 is exempt from compliance with the disposal provisions, and an exemptions for trade-ins where the total value of the old asset is used for the purchase and the value of the new asset is not more than \$75,000.

The Shire of Koorda delegated authority to the CEO, under 3.4 Disposing of Property, requires that disposals under \$20,000 are "undertaken to ensure that the best value return is achieved"; and up to \$75,000 to determine if disposal is most appropriate via public auction, tender or private treaty. For disposals above \$75,000, a council decision is required to determine whether the property is disposed by public tender, auction or by private treaty.

Disposal by auction is straightforward and assumed to be understood by Council; disposal by tender though not required, would in best practice adhere to the same principles are applied to tenders for purchases, whereas disposal by private treaty requires at least two weeks public notice, full description of the goods to be disposed of and a recent (within 6 months) market valuation.

The purpose of this agenda item is to inform Council of the options available to the Shire in disposal of plant and to propose an approach that better considers opportunity for the local community and industry, along with addressing a request from the Works Supervisor to retain an asset due for disposal.

Comment:

The Shire of Koorda has historically preferred to dispose of plant via trade-ins and at auction. However, there is scope under the Local Government Act 1995 for the Shire to dispose of plant via public tender and as such afford the local community to tender for plant as it becomes available.

As mentioned, there are varying requirements for the disposal of plant dependent on the anticipated value. However, it is proposed that Council support the general principle that plant disposal move toward private treaty wherever possible to provide opportunity to purchase by the local community.

Under the Act and in view of the Shire's delegations to the CEO, the principles would apply to all plant with a disposal value exceeding \$20,000 – with plant allocated to purchase new plant with a defined market value in excess of \$75,000 be first presented to Council to approve the private treaty process.

The requirements for the Shire to undertake private treaty plant disposal as per the Local Government Act 1995 section 3.58 (3)(4) are to provide local public notice which:

- Is open to submissions for at least two weeks,
- Defines the market value of the plant (with the valuation no older than six months), and
- Details a full description, as is reasonable, on condition, maintenance and any continuing manufacturers warranties associated with the plant.

In addition, and while not legislative requirements, but to help ensure community goodwill, it is proposed that the shire:

- facilitate inspection of the plant by interested parties during normal working hours or by appointment,
- prior to advertising for sale, have the plant serviced as to avoid any repercussions from the community should the plant experience a failure following sale, and
- advertising to express the condition of sale is as presented and at the purchaser's risk.

In addition, and as foreshadowed earlier in the item, as part of this item it is requested that Council endorse the Shire retain a small vibrating roller that had been budgeted to be used as a trade in on new plant, but for reasons that will be details, is financially more beneficial for the Shire to retain.

The roller in question was used when purchased by the Shire and is smaller than the unit that will replace it. It was estimated by the Work Supervisor to realise \$30,000 at auction to offset the purchase of a new unit that had a budgeted price of \$220,000, and consequently a changeover cost of \$190,000.

As has eventuated, the actual purchase price of the new unit was \$185,000 with the revised return as estimated by the auction house at \$40,000 for a changeover cost of \$145,000, which is a \$45,000 saving for the Shire on budget. On that basis, the Shire should proceed to auction, however that is without consideration of the annual hiring costs to the Shire of periodic need for an additional roller.

Last financial year, the Shire needed to hire an additional roller on six occasions to complete works at a cost of \$27,853. The Works Supervisor estimates the roller due for auction has a five to 10 year remaining working life which even at the lower estimate represents \$139,000 in saved costs.

Consequently, it is proposed that the roller due for auction be retained by the Shire, as the plant replacement does not require the auction return to achieve budget (actual \$185,000 purchase price is \$5000 below budgeted changeover cost) and that within only two years, the anticipated savings achieved by retaining the roller (\$55,000) would exceed the estimated auction return (\$40,000).

Consultation:

Marnie Herrington, Governance Specialist, WALGA Darren West, Works Supervisor

Statutory Implications:

Local Government Act 19995 division 3 section 3.58 Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 sec. 12

Policy Implications:

F – Purchasing Policy V1.0

W - Asset Management V1.0

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan (2024)

- 2.1 Our local economy grows in a sustainable manner
- 4.1 Open and transparent leadership
- 4.3 Forward planning and delivery of services that achieve strategic priorities

Risk Implications:

Risk Profiling Theme	Vehicles disposed of by the shire to the community have issues post sale
Risk Category	Reputation
Risk Description	Could be community perception that shire is not disclosing condition of plant
Consequence Rating	Moderate (3)
Likelihood Rating	Possible (3)
Risk Matrix Rating	Moderate (9)
Key Controls (in place)	Shire undertake plant servicing prior to offering to community
Action (Treatment)	Information disclosed during advertising period
Risk Rating (after treatment)	Adequate

Financial Implications:

Nil additional.

Voting Requirements: ⊠Simple Majority □Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That Council:

- a) Endorse that staff whenever practicable conduct a private treaty process for the disposal of plant to provide the community the opportunity to participate in the sale, and for plant with a purchase price of \$75,000 or greater, the process be approved by Council.
- b) The Shire retain plant (P016 Roller Vib 2004 Caterpillar CS54) to use for the remainder of its useful life.

13.2. Disaster Ready Fund Proposed Application

Works and Assets		KShire of Koorda Divise in, stay owhle
Date	14 March 2025	
Location	Shire of Koorda	
Responsible Officer	Zac Donovan, Chief Executive Officer	
Author	As above	
Legislation	Nil	
Disclosure of Interest	Nil	
Purpose of Report	⊠Executive Decision □Legislative Requ	irement □Information
Attachments	Disaster Ready Fund Summary Presenta	tion

Background:

The Disaster Ready Fund is a \$200 million Federal funding initiative to assist local governments to access for disaster resilience and risk reduction projects. The 2025-26 allocation was promoted as focussing on infrastructure projects with a minimum required project budget of \$500m.

As the fund is a matched initiate – in that Local Governments share in the project costs – it was considered largely inaccessible for smaller shires required to fund the required minimum. A presentation at the Great Eastern Country Zone revealed shires who had accessed previous iterations of the fund would decline to participate in the current round due to the minimum funding requirements.

To assist applicants with application submissions, the Department of Fire and Emergency Services, who is the lead agency for DRF applications from WA, held an online presentation (attached) which outlined that the infrastructure component of the funding amounted to \$139m with the remainder \$61m assigned to non-infrastructure projects which were not limited to a \$500,000 project minimum.

In addition, DFES highlighted the sliding scale of co-contributions from 50 per cent of total project costs for larger organisations and Local Governments down to 10 per cent co-contribution for Indigenous organisations and local governments listed as remote by the Australian Bureau of Statistics Remoteness Structure. The Shire of Koorda falls into this group.

The purpose of this item is to outline a proposed non-infrastructure project for which the Shire of Koorda would apply, as per the terms of the Disaster Ready Fund, for 90 per cent funding to help enhance the Shire's disaster preparedness.

Comment:

Accessing the non-infrastructure funding stream of the Disaster Ready Fund is more accessible for the Shire not just due to absence of a minimum project budget but also due to the complexity and preprepared professional documentation and plans required in the application requirements for infrastructure projects as shovel ready.

The project proposed for Council support comprises three trailable units that would enhance both the region's preparedness and resilience to respond to emergency events by improved mobile communications; remote monitoring of locations; and catering support in the field. The application is for the Shire to purchase the three units at a combined cost of \$169,300 which will requiring a co-contribution of \$16,930 from the Shire.

As per the DFES presentation (attached) one of the key objectives of the fund is "Increasing resilience, adaptability and preparedness" in relation to emergencies and natural disasters. As summarised in the following, the shire's application will highlight, how each of the three components achieve that objective

and position the shire to better respond and support its emergency services and volunteers in the context of the region's remote location, poor communications support and limited volunteer resources.

Given the timeframe – application deadline of 2 April – the manager of the Koorda Community Resource Centre is assisting with the development of the grant application in preparedness should Council resolve to support the application.

The components of the proposed \$169,300 application comprise:

- Mobile Communications Tower: \$56,850 based on previous quote (attached) and delay.
- Mobile CCTV Unit: \$92,950 based on quote from supplier
- Mobile Cooking Unit: Estimated \$19,500 based on initial investigations by CRC.

Details on each of the components, and the rationale as to the inclusion of each in the application and the combined benefit to emergency preparedness and response are as follows:

Mobile Communications Tower

Originally proposed to be purchased by the Shire with Seroja funding, which was diverted to the toilets at the precinct mobile new recreation project, the communications tower is a trailer mounted mobile relay assists emergency services maintain that to communications links when operating out of town where the Shire experiences mostly unreliable network coverage. A quote (attached) was received for the relay with the cost at \$56,850.





Mobile CCTV Unit

This would be most useful when an emergency scenario requires restricted community access. As the cameras can be accessed remotely, one volunteer could monitor a restricted access point while attending at another - in effect be in two places at once – which leverages the limited volunteer resources. The unit (details attached) is quoted at \$92,950.

Mobile Cooking Unit

In effect the unit is a covered barbecue on a trailer, the unit would assist with providing meals for emergency volunteers when operating in remote periods for extended periods. Past emergency events have proved that the provision of meals on site has enabled volunteers to continue operating where most required. The CRC manager is currently sourcing a quote on a unit but expects from initial enquiries that \$19,500 would be sufficient.



Should Council support the application, it is proposed that the required \$17,000 in co-contribution be allocated from the NRM reserve which currently retains \$23,644 of unallocated funds and for which the original purpose is now redundant.

Consultation:

Peter Herrington, Director, IP Cameras Australia Cr Jannah Stratford, President, Shire of Koorda Kim Storer, Manager, Koorda Community Resource Centre Lana Foote, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Mark Schorer, Regional Manager, Regional Preparedness and Coordination, Dept. of Communities Sgt Sheryl Jackamarra, OIC, Koorda WA Police

Statutory Implications:

Nil

Policy Implications:

Nil

Strategic Implications:

Shire of Koorda Integrated Strategic Plan 2024

- 1 Local people feel safe, engaged and enjoy a healthy and peaceful lifestyle.
- 3.1 Shire owned facilities are renewed and maintained to meet community needs

Risk Implications:

Risk Profiling Theme	Funding providers require shire contributes more than 10 per cent or the costs for the project components increase.
Risk Category	Financial
Risk Description	Available funds in the NRM reserve would enable the shire to contribute an additional \$7600 (or more than 40 per cent) to the project.
Consequence Rating	Insignificant (1)
Likelihood Rating	Possible (3)
Risk Matrix Rating	Low (3)
Key Controls (in place)	Funding contingency in NRM reserve.
Action (Treatment)	Application details
Risk Rating (after treatment)	Effective

Financial Implications:

Re-allocate \$17,000 from NRM Reserve to Plant Reserve.

Allocation of up to \$17,000 from the NRM reserve.

Voting Requirements: □ Simple Majority ⊠ Absolute Majority

Officer Recommendation

That Council, proceed with the Disaster Ready Fund application for the project components as outlined, and the Shire transfer \$17,000 from the NRM Reserve fund to the Plant Reserve to fund the Shire's co-contribution.

14. Urgent Business Approved by the Person Presiding or by Decision

- 15. Elected Members' Motions
- 16. Matters Behind Closed Doors
- 17. Closure